
Town of Rico Memorandum 

Date: August 13, 2025 

TO:   Town of Rico Boad of Trustees  

FROM:        Chauncey McCarthy, Rico Town Manager 

SUBJECT:   August Board of Trustees Meeting 

Consideration of a letter of support for Region 9 Economic Development District 
grant application to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs to fund automation 
of the Housing Needs Assessment (Pg. 15) 

The Town of Rico has prepared a letter of support for the Southwest Colorado Council 
of Governments’ (SWCCOG) grant application, coordinated by Region 9 Economic 
Development District, to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) through the 
Housing Planning and Land Use Needs (HPLN) program. While the Town is not subject 
to SB24-174 requirements, housing pressures affect the entire region. The proposed 
project would create a regional, automated Housing Needs Assessment (HNA) template 
to reduce duplication, minimize administrative burden, and ensure consistent data and 
reporting across jurisdictions. 

Recommended Action: Approval of the letter of support for the Region 9 Economic 
Development District grant application  

Selection of Rico Community Church committee (Pg.16-23) 

The Town received seven letters of interest, which have been included in the packet, to 
serve on the temporary advisory committee for the historic Rico Community Church. 
Letters were submitted by Jill Jordan, Joanna Yonder, Pam Brown, Pat Bailey, Joy 
Littleton, Emily Nolan, and Sarah Lyons 

It is currently unknown whether Emily Nolan will serve in one of the general seats or 
occupy the position reserved for the Rico Center. The Rico Historical Society will be 
represented by Deanna Drew and Jim Barron, who will alternate attendance depending 
on the topics under discussion. One seat on the committee has also been reserved for a 
member of the Board of Trustees. All applicants have been advised to attend the 
August 20th Board of Trustees meeting, at which committee members will be selected. 

Following selection, it may be ideal for the Board and newly appointed committee 
members present to determine the date of their first meeting. 

Requested Action: Board selection of committee members from the pool of applicants, 
confirmation of the Rico Center and Board of Trustees representatives, and 
coordination of the committee’s initial meeting date. 

1



Consideration of liquor license special event permit, Rico Trails Alliance 503 C 
event on October 2, 2025 at Fireweed Café   (Pg. 24-24) 

Included in the packet for the Board’s consideration is the special event liquor license 
application submitted by the Rico Trails Alliance for their fall fundraising event at the 
Fireweed Café. The Board of Trustees previously approved a special event license for 
this event, which was originally scheduled for August 14, 2025. Due to wildfire activity 
and smoky conditions, the August date was canceled. 

Recommended Action: Approval of the liquor license special event permit for the Rico 
Trails Alliance event on October 2, 2025  

Consideration of Resolution 2025-04 a resolution of the Town of Rico, Board of 
Trustees supporting the submission of a grant application for funds from 
Colorado Parks and Wildlife non-motorized trail fund  (Pg. 35-69) 

The Board of Trustees is asked to consider adoption of Resolution 2025-04, which 
would express the Town’s support for the Rico Trails Alliance’s (RTA) application to the 
Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) Non-Motorized Trail Fund for construction of a 
pedestrian bridge across the Dolores River. The proposed bridge would connect the 
north and south sections of the RGS River Trail, providing the only non-motorized route 
in the region with a gentle grade accessible to a wide range of users. 

Approval of the resolution is necessary for the RTA to submit its application; however, 
concerns have been raised because the resolution, as drafted, commits the Town to 
providing matching funds without a specific amount being identified by the RTA. This 
creates uncertainty regarding the potential financial obligation to the Town. 

The Town has already invested over $1 million revitalizing the RGS trailhead at the 
north end of the Rio Grande Southern Trail in the core of the river corridor. These 
improvements include public parking, restrooms, a skate park, and pavilion. With the 
completion of the revitalization project and the creation of Depot Park, the Town’s Park 
and Open Space Fund is projected to have approximately $70,000 remaining at the 
close of the fiscal year. The Conservation Trust Fund is anticipated to close the year 
with less than $2,500.  

In addition, under the Recorded Recreational Trail Easement, the Town is obligated to: 

• Maintain the trail and all improvements within the easement area, including the
bridge, at the Town’s sole cost and expense.

• Provide and maintain liability insurance naming the property owner as an
additional insured.

• Install and maintain gates, boulders, and signage to prevent unauthorized
motorized access, subject to property owner approval.

2



• Coordinate with the property owner on bridge design, location, and signage
approvals.

• Ensure trail construction and maintenance comply with erosion control standards
and access restrictions in the easement.

Given these existing investments, obligations, and the town’s prior $3,500 contribution 
to this project, any additional funding commitment would need to be carefully evaluated. 

Included in the packet are: 

• Resolution 2025-04 – A resolution of the Town of Rico Board of Trustees
supporting the submission of a grant application by the Rico Trails Alliance (RTA)
to the Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) Non-Motorized Trail Fund.

• Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Town and RTA outlining
cooperative efforts for the RGS River Trail.

• Recorded Recreational Trail Easement for the bridge site on the Lazy Rooster
Ranch property.

• Non-motorized grant program manual page nine states requirements for the
resolution from the governing body

Rico Geothermal Collation update

Teal Stetson-Lee will provide an update on the Rico Geothermal Coalition, including a 
recap of the July community outreach event, the status of current  surveying activities, 
notice of a second grant award supporting ongoing work, and the potential creation of 
an official Rico Geothermal Committee, to be appointed by the Board of Trustees. 

Montelores Coalition Update (Pg. 70-71) 

Included in the packet is a two-page informational document outlining the mission, 
vision, and current projects of the Montelores Coalition. A community-driven partnership 
focused on advancing sustainable outdoor recreation, conservation, and economic 
vitality across Montezuma and Dolores Counties. 

Skip Zeller will be in attendance to present this update, provide additional context on the 
Coalition’s recent work, and answer any questions from the Board.  

Election update and timeline 

Nomination petitions for the upcoming election are due by August 25th. The Town of 
Rico is accepting pro/con statements on ballot measures until September 19th; these 
statements must be personally signed and received at the Clerk’s Office by that date, 

3



either delivered in person or by mail. TABOR notices will be mailed to all registered 
electors by October 3rd. Election judges will be appointed at the October Board 
meeting, where the Board will also have the opportunity to publicly support the ballot 
measures through a resolution. 

Staff will prepare a brief factual FAQ about the ballot measures, to be published in 
October closer to the election date, as advised by the Town Attorney. The election will 
be held in person on November 4th. The next discussion of election matters and action 
items will be presented to the Board at the October 15th meeting. 

Colorado 150th America 250th July 4th weekend celebration 

In 2026, the 4th of July will fall on a Saturday. Staff is requesting authorization from the 
Board to begin pursuing sponsorships for a two-day Colorado 150th / America 250th 
holiday celebration and to coordinate with the Women’s Club for Town-sponsored 
events on both Saturday and Sunday. Proposed activities include a concert at the Town 
Park Pavilion on Saturday following the parade and Fire Department lunch, along with 
additional events throughout the weekend. The Board should also discuss a potential 
amount to earmark in the 2026 budget to help cover event costs. 

Pavilion rental policy (Pg. 71-73) 

The purpose of this discussion is to review and give direction to staff for the creation of 
a Pavilion Rental Policy for the Town Park Pavilion. This policy will set clear 
expectations for use, ensure equitable access for the public, protect the facility from 
damage, and outline when Special Event Permits are required. Staff and the Board will 
also need to determine next steps for the creation of a Special Event Permit. Included in 
the packet is a memo for the boards review and discussion.  

4



 
 

 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: July 9, 2025 
Call to Order 7:02 PM 
 
Trustees Present:    
   Mayor Patrick Fallon 
   Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard 
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis 
   Trustee Gerrish Willis  
 
 
Trustees Absent:   
   Trustee Chris Condon 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth 
   Trustee Scott Poston 
 
 
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf (Zoom),  
  
 
Action Items: 
Consideration of liquor license special event permit for Rico Trails Alliance event on 
August 18, 2025 at the Fireweed Café  
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board has discussion. 
 
Motion 
Move approve liquor license special event permit for Rico Trails Alliance event on August 
18, 2025 at the Fireweed Café 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Gerrish Willis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 4-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
and Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Consideration of hiring a new Town Marshal  
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board has discussion.  
 
Motion 
Move approve hiring of the recommended candidate as a part time Town Marshal pending 
his physiological evaluation and authorize Town Staff to administer the oath of office upon 
the fulfillment of those requirements.   
 Moved by Mayor Patrick Fallon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard. 

5



 
 

Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 4-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
and Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
 
Adjourn unanimously. 
 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                        Patrick Fallon 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                       Mayor 

6



 
 

 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: July 16, 2025 
Call to Order 7:20 PM 
 
Trustees Present:    
   Mayor Patrick Fallon 
   Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard 
   Trustee Gerrish Willis  
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth 
   Trustee Scott Poston 
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis 
   Trustee Chris Condon 
 
 
Trustees Absent:   
 
 
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf (Zoom),  
  
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion 
To approve the agenda with the removal of the Museum lease agreement. 
 Moved by Trustee Ben Vernadakis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, and Trustee Scott Poston.  
Trustee Joe Dillsworth did not vote 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
Change motion first, and adding the word license. 
Motion 
To approve the minutes of June 11 and June 18, 2025 
 Moved by, Mayor Patrick Fallon, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 7-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, Trustee Joe Dillsworth, and Trustee 
Scott Poston.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Payment of the Bills 
 

7



 
 

Town Clerk gives summary of additional checks that were made out. 
Motion 
To approve payment of the bills. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Gerrish Willis 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 7-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, Trustee Joe Dillsworth, and Trustee 
Scott Poston. 
 
Public Comment: 
Linda Yellowman told the Board about the upcoming Commissioners meeting in Rico. 
Scott Poston: speaking on behalf of Skip Zeller about the Rico Land collaborative. 
 
Action Items: 
Consideration of second reading of Ordinance No. 2025-04 an ordinance of the Town of 
Rico, Colorado, setting the title and content of ballot issues for a mill levy increase to be 
submitted at the election to be held on November 4, 2025  
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board has discussion. 
 
 
Motion 
Move approve second reading of Ordinance No. 2025-04 an ordinance of the Town of 
Rico, Colorado, setting the title and content of ballot issues for a mill levy increase to be 
submitted at the election to be held on November 4, 2025. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Gerrish Willis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 7-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, Trustee Joe Dillsworth, and Trustee 
Scott Poston. 
 
Consideration of quarter 2 financial statements 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board has discussion.  
Public Comment:  
 
Motion 
Move approve the quarterly financial statements.  
 Moved by Trustee Gerrish Willis, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 7-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, Trustee Joe Dillsworth, and Trustee 
Scott Poston. 

8



 
 

 
Consideration of liquor license special event permit, Rico Skatepark 503 c for the Rico 
Round Up Car show on September 20, 2025 at 20 South Glasgow 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary. 
Board has discussion. 
Public Comment: Larry Carver 
 
Motion 
Move approve liquor license special event permit, Rico Skatepark 503 c for the Rico 
Round Up Car show on September 20, 2025 at 20 South Glasgow.  
 Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 7-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, Trustee Joe Dillsworth, and Trustee 
Scott Poston. 
 
Staff Report 
Clerk’s report:  
Park 4th of July prep 
Prepping space for Food pantry. Waiting on an inspection. Hoping to open July 22nd 
pending the inspection. 
End of quarter. 
Noticing fire restriction. 
 
Manager’s report 
Food Pantry update. 
4th of July was very successful. 
Wildfire code update.  
Noxious weeds district call for county land. 
Chauncey out of office for the weekend. 
 
Discussion Items 
Election update and timeline 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives update. 
Board has discussion. 
Petitions may be signed August 5-25 
 
Water system updates 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives update. 
Board has discussion. 
Silver Creek project is being reviewed by the State right now. 
 
Town Park updates, name, and policies 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives update. 
Board has discussion. 

9



 
 

Depot Park was approved as name by the Board. 
 
Rico Community Church committee 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives update. 
Board has discussion. 
Nominations to take place at the August Board meeting. 
 
Short Term Rental license revision 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives update. 
Board has discussion. 
Public Comment: Scott Grimmsmith, Melissa Kawalick, Allyn Svoboda 
Board and Planning Commission to have joint meeting August 13 to workshop the STR 
ordinance. 
 
Nuisance ordinance review 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives update. Needs to be repealed and replaced. 
Work session to be held after Town Manager does research on ordinances of other 
municipalities comparable to Rico. 
 
 
Motion 
Move to adjourn.  
 Moved by Trustee Gerrish Willis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 7-0.  
Voting Yes Mayor Patrick Fallon, Trustee Gerrish Willis, Mayor Pro Tem Cristal Hibbard, 
Trustee Benn Vernadakis, Trustee Chris Condon, Trustee Joe Dillsworth, and Trustee 
Scott Poston. 
 
 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                        Patrick Fallon 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                       Mayor 

10



8/12/25 at 15:03:53.63 Page: 1

NEW Town of Rico - General Fund

Check Register
For the Period From Aug 1, 2025 to Aug 31, 2025

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date.

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

18488 8/1/25 WM Corporate Services, I 10000 116.68

18489 8/1/25 Gretchen Treadwell 10000 1,440.00

17939V 8/7/25 Michael A. Moran 10000 -253.32

18498 8/12/25 Chauncey P. McCarthy 10000 2,727.64

18499 8/12/25 Jerry A. Sam 10000 449.64

18500 8/12/25 Dennis E. Swank 10000 1,599.92

18501 8/12/25 Anna C. Wolf 10000 1,478.93

18491 8/12/25 Jon Kelly 10000 375.00

18492 8/12/25 LP Propane LLC 10000 400.00

18493 8/12/25 Century Link 10000 3.60

18494 8/12/25 Utility Notification Center 10000 1,365.55

18495 8/12/25 Rico Fire Protection 10000 272.00

18496 8/12/25 Rico Telephone Company 10000 250.00

18497 8/12/25 San Miguel Power Associ 10000 258.00

18490 8/12/25 Karp Neu Hanlon, PC 10000 861.00

18502 8/12/25 Karp Neu Hanlon, PC 10000 783.00

Total 12,127.64

11



8/12/25 at 15:16:05.32 Page: 1

NEW Town of Rico - Open Park Fund

Check Register
For the Period From Aug 1, 2025 to Aug 31, 2025

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date.

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

1806 8/1/25 Fischer Project Manageme 11000 15,000.00

1807 8/12/25 LePew Porta-Johns, Inc 11000 175.00

1808 8/12/25 San Miguel Power Associ 11000 30.00

Total 15,205.00

12



8/12/25 at 15:12:01.16 Page: 1

2018 NEW Town of Rico - Street Fund

Check Register
For the Period From Aug 1, 2025 to Aug 31, 2025

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date.

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

3010 8/1/25 Smith's Materials, LLC 10000 557.51

3011 8/1/25 4 rivers Equipment 10000 208.99

3012 8/12/25 Rico Telephone Company 10000 50.00

3013 8/12/25 Slavens, Inc 10000 43.36

3014 8/12/25 WM Corporate Services, I 10000 410.65

3015 8/12/25 San Miguel Power Associ 10000 127.00

Total 1,397.51

13



8/12/25 at 15:24:00.77 Page: 1

NEW Town of Rico - Water Fund

Check Register
For the Period From Aug 1, 2025 to Aug 31, 2025

Filter Criteria includes: Report order is by Date.

Check # Date Payee Cash Account Amount

4753 8/1/25 Dewco 10000 407.03

4754 8/1/25 Ferguson Waterwork #111 10000 875.74

4755 8/1/25 CO Dept of Public Health 10000 113.00

4756 8/12/25 AT&T Mobility 10000 111.40

4757 8/12/25 Rico Telephone Company 10000 115.00

4758 8/12/25 LP Propane LLC 10000 200.00

4759 8/12/25 PVS DX, INC 10000 171.89

4760 8/12/25 Todd Jones 10000 750.00

4761 8/12/25 La Plata County PH Dept 10000 38.50

4762 8/12/25 San Miguel Power Associ 10000 559.00

4763 8/12/25 Karp Neu Hanlon 10000 485.00

4764 8/12/25 Dewco 10000 206.24

Total 4,032.80

14



 
TOWN OF RICO 

INCORPORATED OCTOBER 11, 1879 
2 North Commercial Street 

Post Office Box 9 
Rico, Colorado 81332 
Office # 970.967.2861 
Fax # 970.967.2862 

www.ricocolorado.gov 
 
August 20, 2025 
 
Colorado Department of Local Affairs 
1313 Sherman Street, Suite 521 
Denver, CO 80203 
Dear HPLN Selection Committee, 

On behalf of the Town of Rico, I am writing to confirm our support for the 
Southwest Colorado’s grant application to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs 
(DOLA) through the HPLN program. 

While our jurisdiction is not subject to SB24-174, we recognize that housing 
pressures affect the entire region, and a patchwork approach to housing needs 
assessments is neither practical nor helpful. Like many rural governments, we face 
limited staff capacity and tight budgets, which make it difficult to undertake this type of 
technical analysis every six years.  

We support the SWCCOG’s effort to develop a regional, automated Housing 
Needs Assessment (HNA) template that will reduce duplication, minimize administrative 
burden, and ensure consistent data and reporting across all jurisdictions, regardless of 
population thresholds.  
We appreciate the opportunity to participate in a solution that makes compliance more 
manageable and meaningful. The SWCCOG will take the lead on technical 
development and reporting, and we are committed to assisting with local review, 
feedback, and implementation as needed. 

We thank Region 9 EDD for stepping in to coordinate this work on behalf of the 
region and support their application to DOLA’s HPLN program. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Patrick Fallon, Mayor 
On behalf of the Town of Rico Board of Trustees 
 

15



Church Committee Notice  

The Town of Rico is seeking local residents to serve on a temporary advisory committee 
focused on the future of the historic Rico Church building. The Church Committee will 
guide planning, fundraising, and operational strategy over a one-year term. 

Committee Structure: 

• Seeking Rico residents to serve 

• Includes representation from the Board of Trustees, Rico Historical Society, and 
Rico Center 

Meeting Schedule & Responsibilities: 

• Meets 1–2 times per month at Rico Town Hall 

• Meetings will be publicly noticed in compliance with Colorado Open Meetings 
Law 

• The committee will appoint a Chair and Secretary at its first meeting 

• Meeting minutes must be taken and maintained 

• The committee will provide monthly updates and quarterly written reports to the 
Board of Trustees 

• Initial meetings will focus on developing a strategic plan to guide the committee’s 
work over the one-year term 

Committee Focus: 
The committee will work to identify funding opportunities, assess structural and facility 
needs, and develop operational and policy recommendations to support the long-term 
use of the church building. The goal is to position Town staff to begin implementing 
recommendations within one year. 

 

16



August 5, 2025 

Dear Manager McCarthy, 

I am writing to express my interest in serving on the advisory committee for the historic Rico 
Church. As a full-time resident of Rico, and a neighbor living directly next to the church, I care 
about preserving this iconic structure and thoughtfully shaping its future use. 

I have attended the Rico Church in every iteration over the past four years and have seen 
firsthand how it has served as a meaningful gathering space for our community. I believe it has 
the potential to continue as both a preserved historic building and an integral part of Rico’s 
social life.  

I am drawn to the committee’s goal to guide planning and operational strategy. With experience 
in event planning and community engagement, I would bring both practical contributions and a 
personal connection to this work. 

Thank you for considering my interest. I would appreciate the opportunity to contribute to the 
future of a building that holds such significance for Rico and Mantz Avenue. 

Sincerely, 
Joy Littleton 

17



View this email in your browser

The Town of Rico is seeking local residents to serve on a temporary advisory
committee focused on the future of the historic Rico Church building. The
Church Committee will guide planning, fundraising, and operational strategy
over a one-year term.

Committee Structure:

Seeking Rico residents to serve

Includes representation from the Board of Trustees, Rico Historical
Society, and Rico Center

Meeting Schedule & Responsibilities:

Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Re: Help Shape the Future of the Rico Church Building. Join the Church Committee!
1 message

Emily Nolan <emily.nolan307@gmail.com> Wed, Aug 6, 2025 at 11:38 AM
To: Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Thank you for organizing this committee! I want to formally thank both you and the Board of Trustees for all you do for
Rico. Everyone’s commitment is awesome to see; I know no one’s part is small and much time and effort goes on behind
the scenes. 

I am very interested in being on this committee as you may already have been informed via Cristal and my membership
on the Rico Center Board. Whatever that looks like please consider me committed to finding and supporting operational
usage of the church in ways that best serve the residents of the Rico community. I remain excited to discovering how to
respond to the community’s needs and wants through all the variety of talent, skill and passion this community has to offer
each other. 

Thanks again, 

Emily Nolan

On Mon, Jul 21, 2025 at 3:36 PM Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov> wrote:

8/13/25, 3:38 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Re: Help Shape the Future of the Rico Church Building. Join the Church Committee!

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1839728608281882015&simpl=msg-f:1839728608281882015 1/2

18

https://mailchi.mp/bf41eb6e2d92/march-18165583?e=e3ae564375
mailto:townmanager@ricocolorado.gov


View this email in your browser

The Town of Rico is seeking local residents to serve on a temporary advisory
committee focused on the future of the historic Rico Church building. The
Church Committee will guide planning, fundraising, and operational strategy
over a one-year term.

Committee Structure:

Seeking Rico residents to serve

Includes representation from the Board of Trustees, Rico Historical
Society, and Rico Center

Meeting Schedule & Responsibilities:

Meets 1–2 times per month at Rico Town Hall

Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Sarah Lyons, interested in church commitee
3 messages

Axton and Kean Lyons <sarahleighhauze@gmail.com> Tue, Jul 22, 2025 at 7:20 AM
To: Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Dear Chauncey, 

As a Rico resident and parent, I am interested in participating in the church committee. I understand the commitment of
time and energy necessary to create and implement a plan to transform the  church property into a community space for
the town of Rico.  Please let me know if you would like my assistance with this process.

Thank you,

Sarah Lyons
26 North Glasgow Avenue 
970-331-2447 

On Mon, Jul 21, 2025, 3:36 PM Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov> wrote:

8/13/25, 3:39 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Sarah Lyons, interested in church commitee

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1838353406050303344&simpl=msg-f:183835340605030334… 1/3

19

https://mailchi.mp/bf41eb6e2d92/march-18165583?e=726f52c2ec
https://www.google.com/maps/search/26+North+Glasgow+Avenue?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:townmanager@ricocolorado.gov


View this email in your browser

The Town of Rico is seeking local residents to serve on a temporary advisory
committee focused on the future of the historic Rico Church building. The
Church Committee will guide planning, fundraising, and operational strategy
over a one-year term.

Committee Structure:

Seeking Rico residents to serve

Includes representation from the Board of Trustees, Rico Historical
Society, and Rico Center

Meeting Schedule & Responsibilities:

Meets 1–2 times per month at Rico Town Hall

Meetings will be publicly noticed in compliance with Colorado Open
Meetings Law

The committee will appoint a Chair and Secretary at its first meeting

Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Re: Help Shape the Future of the Rico Church Building. Join the Church Committee!
2 messages

jill pj <jilldpj@gmail.com> Tue, Jul 22, 2025 at 9:57 AM
To: Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Good morning Chauncey, I would like to express an interest in being on the church committee. 
I have a background with Civic related boards, having served on the Decatur Georgia sustainability board for seven years
and also have participated in various volunteer positions as part of community building back in Decatur. I would love to
help in Rico if there’s room on the board. I also do have experience working with Church related issues, but I’m sure this
is more of a non-secular situation.

Jill Jordan 

On Mon, Jul 21, 2025 at 3:36 PM Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov> wrote:

8/13/25, 3:41 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Re: Help Shape the Future of the Rico Church Building. Join the Church Committee!

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1838363314481009255&simpl=msg-f:183836331448100925… 1/2

20

https://mailchi.mp/bf41eb6e2d92/march-18165583?e=47dfd598fa
mailto:townmanager@ricocolorado.gov


View this email in your browser

The Town of Rico is seeking local residents to serve on a temporary advisory
committee focused on the future of the historic Rico Church building. The

Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Re: Help Shape the Future of the Rico Church Building. Join the Church Committee!
2 messages

Joanna Spindler <joannahavana@gmail.com> Tue, Jul 22, 2025 at 9:00 AM
To: Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Greetings Rico Town Manager and Staff,

I am submitting with warmth my letter of interest for the new Rico Church Committee! When I received notice of this ad hoc
committee I was immediately excited to perhaps become involved. Here’s a little bit about my background and why I am interested
in serving:

My name is Joanna Yonder; I’m a newer resident of Rico and thirteen-year resident of the region. During my time in our mountain
towns, I have served on many regional boards and committees, and I worked for twelve years with all ages of folks at the Wilkinson
Public Library. In that professional role, I saw firsthand the great power of shared spaces and was involved daily in the practical
oversight of sharing, funding and staffing community spaces of all kinds.

I believe in the power of carving out useful places for community members of all ages and backgrounds to meet, create, worship,
exercise, interface, and more. I am experienced in seeking state and national funding for community programming and
infrastructure through grant opportunities, and in all manner of pertinent committee work (taking and disseminating official notes,
website and email newsletter work, community surveys, meeting planning and facilitation, etc.) Having renovated two old houses
(and currently involved in work on our 1890s house on Mantz!) I have appreciation for- and experience with- historic architecture. I
also gratefully took part in multiple Rico community events hosted at the church during the early iterations of its community space
use and have celebrated its many iterations.

Perhaps most pertinently, though, I’ve been seeking out new ways to bring my past experiences into service for Rico. I would love to
become involved in the Rico Church Committee, first to listen and learn. I believe there is a wealth of great ideas in our town, and so
much opportunity for collaboration and future-oriented planning that honors the past and current eras of our wonderful
community.

Thank you so much for considering my help! Please feel free to contact me anytime. I look forward to being involved in our
community in any way that may be useful.

Warmly,

Joanna Yonder
212 E Mantz Avenue
joannayonder@gmail.com
(970)227-5008

On Mon, Jul 21, 2025 at 3:36 PM Office of the Town Manager <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov> wrote:

8/13/25, 3:41 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Re: Help Shape the Future of the Rico Church Building. Join the Church Committee!

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1838359720149563734&simpl=msg-f:183835972014956373… 1/3

21

https://mailchi.mp/bf41eb6e2d92/march-18165583?e=59bdc7dc8f
mailto:joannayonder@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@ricocolorado.gov


Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Future of the historic Rico Church committee
1 message

Pamela Brown <titusgirl@gmail.com> Tue, Aug 12, 2025 at 9:12 AM
To: townmanager@ricocolorado.gov

Hello -  This is Pam Brown and I would like to express my interest in serving on the committee for the future of the historic
Rico Church.  My partner Eric Peterson and I moved to Rico last June to work at High Camp Hut on Lizard Head Pass. 
We now consider ourselves part of this amazing community and are planning to stay long term, if circumstances allow us. 
I would love to contribute by serving on this committee - it is a wonderful opportunity to create a space that can be used in
so many different ways.  Thanks for your consideration. 
Pam
Sent from my iPad

8/13/25, 3:37 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Future of the historic Rico Church committee

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1840263018964456080&simpl=msg-f:1840263018964456080 1/1

22



Chauncey McCarthy <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>

Rico Church Committee
2 messages

Patrick Bailey <mtnpas@icloud.com> Tue, Jul 22, 2025 at 3:55 PM
To: Chauncie <townmanager@ricocolorado.gov>
Cc: Deanna Drew <deanna@ricohistory.org>

Chauncie:

Thank you for the information. I would be glad to serve on the Rico Church Committee. 

Peace,
Pat Bailey
970-708-1092

8/13/25, 3:41 PM Town of Rico, CO Mail - Rico Church Committee

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=5ef4f4ec28&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1838385814444198338&simpl=msg-f:183838581444419833… 1/1

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



RESOLUTION 2025-04 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF RICO BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES SUPPORTING THE SUBMISSION OF A 
GRANT APPLICATION FOR FUNDS FROM COLORADO 
PARKS AND WILDLIFE NON-MOTORIZED TRAIL FUND 

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico (“Town”) supports the Rico Trails Alliance, a Colorado 
501(c)(3) nonprofit, to submit an application to Colorado Parks and Wildlife (“CPW”) Non-
motorized Trails Grant program to fund construction of a pedestrian bridge across the 
Dolores River; and  

WHEREAS, the Town’s support of the Rico Trails Alliance’s CPW grant application is 
consistent with Article IV of The Rico Regional Master Plan, which addresses parks, open 
space and trails within the Town as well as the Rico Growth Boundary surrounding the 
Town including the location for the RGS River Trail’s bridge; and  

WHEREAS, once constructed, the bridge will connect the north and south sections of the 
RGS River Trail, extending south from Town approximately 4.7 miles along the former 
Rio Grande Southern Railroad grade, in order to create the only non-motorized trail within 
the region that has a gentle grade to accommodate trail users of all abilities; and 

WHEREAS, the RGS River Trail is fully approved by the US Forest Service and lies 
partially within the San Juan National Forest and partially within parcels of private property 
that are subject to perpetual public trail easements owned by the Town for non-motorized 
public use (pedestrian, cycling, nordic skiing); and 

WHEREAS, the bridge for the RGS River Trail has been approved/permitted by the 
Dolores County Commissioners, and is expressly authorized to be constructed within that 
certain perpetual Recreational Trail Easement area that crosses the Lazy Rooster Ranch 
(recorded in the Dolores County Clerk and Recorder’s office on September 30, 2020 at 
Reception No. 169967).  

NOW, THEREFOR, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF RICO THAT:  

SECTION 1: the Town Board of Trustees hereby expresses its support for the CPW Non-
Motorized Trails Grant application, and if the grant is awarded, supports completion of the 
bridge project by the Rico Trails Alliance.  

SECTION 2: the Town Board of Trustees recognizes its legal and financial obligations 
under the Recreational Trail Easement and, in conjunction with the Rico Trails Alliance, 
intends to provide funding dedicated to parks, open space and trails for the bridge’s long-
term maintenance.  

35



SECTION 3: the Town Board of Trustees intends to authorize the expenditure of funds in 
amounts to be approved by the Board of Trustees if needed to supplement the financial 
support contributed by the Rico Trails Alliance, to meet the terms and obligations of the 
CPW’s Non-motorized Trails planning grant agreement, if awarded.  

SECTION 4, all funding provided by the Town is subject to the award and execution of a 
CPW grant agreement for construction of the bridge and is subject to annual appropriation 
by the Town’s Board of Trustees.  

ADOPTED this 20th day of August, 2025, by the Board of Trustees for the Town of Rico, 
Colorado.   

              
        Patrick Fallon, Mayor  
        Town of Rico, Colorado 
Attest: 
 
      
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
Town of Rico, Colorado 

36



169967 

RECREATIONAL TRAIL EASEMENT 

This RECREATIONAL TRAIL EASEMENT ("Trail Easement") is made and entered into 
by and between the Town of Rico, a Colorado home rule municipality and political subdivision of 
the State of Colorado ("Grantee"), whose legal address is PO Box 9, Rico, Colorado 81332, and 
Michael Popek and Alana Karen (collectively "Grantor"), whose legal address is 959 Waverly 
Street, Palo Alto, CA 94301. Grantee and Grantor may sometimes singularly be referred to as a 
"Party" or collectively be referred to as the "Parties." 

RECITALS: 

A. Grantor owns certain real property legally described in Exhibit A 1 and A2, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference ("Grantor's Property"). 

B. Grantor and Grantee desire to establish a perpetual, nonexclusive public trail 
easement across Grantor's Property in the location depicted and described in the attached Exhibit B 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions of this Trail Easement, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, and subject to the terms and conditions hereof, the Parties agree as follows. 

AGREEMENTS: 

1. Grant of Trail Easement. Grantor hereby grants, quitclaims, conveys, assigns, 
establishes, and creates to and for the benefit of Grantee, for Grantee's and the public's use and the 
use of Grantee's agents, contractors and employees, a perpetual, non-exclusive public recreational 
trail easement over and across Grantor's Property for pedestrian, bicycle and other non-motorized 
mechanical means of conveyance and for trail and infrastructure installation and maintenance within 
the area depicted on Exhibits B ("Trail Easement"). In granting the Trail Easement, Grantor 
expressly represents, and Grantee acknowledges, that Grantor does not: (a) extend any assurances 
that the Trail Easement area is safe for any purpose; (b) confer upon any person using the Trail 
Easement the legal status of an invitee or licensee to whom a duty of care is owed by Gran tor; ( c) 
assume any responsibility or incur an liability for any injury to person or property or for the death of 
anyone caused by an act or omission of such person. 

2. Restrictions on Use. Camping, campfires, hunting, livestock and equestrian uses 
shall not be permitted in the Trail Easement area. Except as set forth in sections 4 and 5 below, 
motorized use shall not be permitted in the Trail Easement area. 

3. Grantor's Rights. Grantor reserves the right of ownership, use, and occupancy of 
Grantor's Property, insofar as the ownership, use, and occupancy does not materially impair the 
rights granted to Grantee herein. Without limiting the foregoing, Grantor may install utility and 
cable lines, paving, and landscaping, fencing and other improvements so long as the same do not 
interfere with Grantee's use of the designated Trail Easement area on Grantor's Property. 
Moreover, Grantor may remove or plow snow from driveway areas, grade and/or pave driveway 

Page 1 of 10 1111111 l~II IIIII ~Ill 11111~11 ~11111111 llfl 1111 

Lana Hancock, County Clerk & Recorder 
Dolores County, CO 
09-30-2020 01 :21 PM Recordinn FAi:> ~'iR nn 

37



areas, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit Grantor's right to modify the 
circulation of automobile or pedestrian traffic within Grantor's Property, provided that use of the 
Trail Easement is not materially diminished, unreasonably interfered with, or causes a violation 
of applicable law. 

4. Construction of Trail Improvements. A trail currently exists only on portions of the Trail 
Easement area. Grantee has the right to clear brush, rocks and stumps, and in that portion of the 
Trail Easement area where no trail currently exists, to construct a single tract dirt trail ("New 
Trail") as well as a pedestrian/bicycle bridge to be constructed/installed across the East Fork of 
the Dolores River in the historic bridge location shown on Exhibit B. Unless waived by Grantee, 
construction of the bridge shall not occur prior to issuance of the U.S. Forrest Service's approval 
designating a non-motorized trail extending from the north and south ends of the Trail Easement 
area. Grantee shall construct and maintain the New Trail in a manner to minimize erosion. Prior 
to constructing/installing a bridge, Grantee shall provide written notice to Grantor, which 
includes the bridge's design and specifications, and a cost estimate for the bridge, and Grantor 
shall have ten (10) days within which to approve the bridge design, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. Said written notice and Grantor's response may be sent via email. 
Grantor's failure to respond to Grantee's notice within two (2) weeks shall be deemed an 
approval. In the event Grantor responds to Grantee citing concerns with the bridge design, 
Grantor and Grantee shall negotiate in good faith to resolve such concerns. At the north and 
south ends of the Trail Easement area just inside Grantor's Property's boundaries, Grantee shall 
install gates and/or boulders and signage to block and prohibit unauthorized motorized access. 
Grantor shall have the opportunity to approve all signage prior to installation, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld. All trail improvements shall be constructed at Grantee's sole 
cost and expense, except for the Bridge Upgrade, if any. Motorized tools, vehicles and 
equipment may be used for construction and installation of the trail improvements authorized 
herein. Upon substantial completion of the construction of the New Trail, Grantee shall send 
written notice of completion to Grantor ("Notice of Completion") notifying Grantor that the 
New Trail is substantially completed. The Notice of Completion shall be accompanied by a 
"Notice of Location" in which the Grantee's surveyor depicts and legally describes the "as-built" 
location of the New Trail and which shall be recorded as an amendment to Exhibits B hereto. 
Not less than twenty (20) days following the provision of the Notice of Completion and Notice of 
Location, Grantee is authorized and directed to sign and record the Notice of Location. A copy of 
the recorded Notice of Relocation shall be delivered to Grantor. 

5. Trail Relocation. If the location of the Trail Easement interferers with Grantor's 
use and development of the Grantor's Property, Grantor may require Grantee to relocate the Trail 
Easement to another portion of the Grantor's Property as reasonably and mutually determined by 
Grantor and Grantee at the cost of the Grantee in a manner which does not require relocation of 
Grantee's adjoining sections of trail on adjacent properties and which does not require relocation 
of the bridge. In the event that the Trail Easement is relocated, Grantor shall be authorized to 
record a modification/supplement to this Agreement revising the Trail Easement area, which 
Grantee shall promptly execute and deliver to evidence such relocation, which consent and 
delivery shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or otherwise conditioned. Nothing herein 
shall limit or preclude the ability of Grantor to develop the Grantor Property, provided Grantor 
has reasonably identified an alternative for the Trail Easement. 

2 

38



6. Maintenance of Trail Easement Area: Grooming. Grantee, at its sole cost and 
expense, shall be responsible for maintaining the trail and other trail improvements located in the 
Trail Easement area in reasonably good condition. Motorized tools, vehicles and equipment may 
be used for such maintenance. During the months of November through March each winter, 
Grantee shall be permitted to groom the trail for Nordic recreation, including but not limited to 
Nordic skiing, snow shoeing, fat biking and other non-motorized use ("Nordic Grooming"). 
Nordic Grooming may only occur between the hours of 8am and 9pm. 

7. Suspension of Easement. Grantor reserves the right to suspend use of the Trail 
Easement upon any of the following occurrences: 

7 .1 In the event that Grantee fails to substantially and promptly perform any 
of the Grantee's obligations hereunder; 

7 .2 In the event that the Easement Area is repeatedly used for other than the 
Authorized Uses; or 

7.3 In the event that Grantee fails to obtain or maintain the Insurance 
Coverage as described in Section 13 below. 

8. Denial of the Use of the Easement by Grantor. If the suspension is due to one of 
the causes set forth in 7.1 through 7.2 above, Grantor shall deliver written notice to Grantee 
itemizing the specific violation under the terms of this Agreement, or the specific instances of 
trespassing or interference. Thereupon, Grantee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of the 
notice to in good faith comply with the notice and cure the violation or to provide assurances 
acceptable to Grantor that the trespasses or interferences will cease. If Grantor fails to either 
cure the violation or provide such assurances within that time frame, the Grantor may suspend 
use of the Trail Easement until such violation is cured or such assurances are provided to 
Grantor's reasonable satisfaction. If the Grantee fails to obtain or maintain the Insurance 
Coverage, then any rights to use the Easement shall be immediately and automatically suspended 
until such time as the Insurance Coverage is in force and proof thereof has been furnished to the 
Grantor. In addition, in the event the Colorado Landowner Protection Statutes, defined in 
Section 12 below, in effect as of the date hereof, are amended or repealed in whole or part, which 
amendment or repeal, in the reasonable judgment of the Grantor reduces or terminates the 
liability protections afforded Grantor, then unless and until Grantee is able to obtain additional 
liability insurance coverage, which to Grantor's reasonable satisfaction fully protects Grantor 
against additional exposure, Grantor may, upon written notice to Grantee, immediately suspend 
the Easement and prevent further use of any or all of the Easement Area until and unless Grantee 
obtains such additional liability insurance coverage, reasonably acceptable to the Grantor. 

9. Default. In the event of a default by either Party under this Trail Easement in the 
observance or performance of any of the covenants or other provisions here to be observed or 
performed by such Party, if such default is not cured within sixty (60) days after notice to defaulting 
Party (or if such default is incapable of cure within such 60-day period and defaulting Party 
commences to cure within such 60-day period and thereafter diligently and continuously takes 

3 

39



action to effect a cure), the non-defaulting Party shall have the following remedies: (a) to cure, if 
capable of cure, the breach by the defaulting Party, with the right of reimbursement from the 
defaulting Party for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection with such cure, 
including reasonable legal fees; (b) an action for specific performance and/or injunction; and (c) an 
action for actual damages. No breach of this Trail Easement shall entitle any party to consequential, 
incidental, economic, treble or punitive damages or to cancel, rescind, or otherwise terminate this 
Agreement, but such limitation shall not affect in any manner any other rights or remedies which 
such Party may have by reason of any breach of this Agreement. 

10. Mechanic's Liens. Grantee shall not permit any mechanic's liens to be placed 
upon the Grantor's Property in connection with construction and maintenance performed by or 
on behalf of Grantee in conjunction with the Trail Easement. 

11. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted under this 
Trail Easement shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered, (b) deposited with a 
nationally recognized overnight delivery service that routinely issues receipts, or (c) given by 
registered or certified mail. Any such notice or other communication shall be effective when such 
notice is delivered to the addresses set forth above. Any Party, by ten (10) days' prior written 
notice given as set forth above, may change the address to which future notices or other 
communications intended for such Party shall be sent. 

12. Landowner Protection Statutes: Indemnification. In granting and accepting the 
recreational Trail Easement, the Parties intend to avail themselves of the maximum immunities, 
benefits and protections available to each of them pursuant to the public recreational use statute, 
CRS §33-41-101 et seq., the Colorado landowner liability statute, CRS §13-21-115, and the 
Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-114 (collectively the "Colorado Landowner 
Protection Statutes"). Nothing in this Agreement is intended to waive any limits on liability 
afforded to the Parties under the Colorado Landowner Protection Statutes. By granting the Trail 
Easement, Grantor shall have no obligation to repair, clear or otherwise maintain the Trail Easement 
area, or to insure or indemnify Grantee or the public for any injury, claim or damage to any person 
or property whether alleged to have occurred as a result of use of the Trail Easement for public non­
motorized trail or otherwise, or due to the condition of the road or trail, unless the need therefore is 
caused by grantor, in which case Grantor shall perform the maintenance or care so required. To the 
extent allowed by law, Grantee hereby agrees to defend and hold harmless Grantor and Grantor's 
heirs, successors and assigns to the full extend allowed under Colorado law, from and against any 
and all claims, demands, causes of action, damages, losses, liabilities, costs and expenses of any 
kind or nature (including those involving death, personal injury or property damage an including 
reasonable attorney's fees) arising from or incurred in any way in connection with the use of the 
Trail Easement by anyone, including members of the general public, excepting any such claims or 
losses which may arise direction from the willful, intentional, reckless, or grossly negligent acts of 
Grantor, its agents or employees, or other claims as described in CRS §33-41-104(1). Grantee may 
satisfy this obligation by maintaining comprehensive public entity liability insurance coverage to 
which the Grantor is named as an additional insured. 

13. Insurance. Grantee shall obtain and maintain insurance and name Grantor as an 
additional insured on its general liability insurance policy, which shall cover those claims and 

4 

40



liabilities arising in connection with an y an all use of the Trail Easement by Grantee, its citizens, 
residents, visitors, licensees and invitees and any other person. The limits of such insurance 
coverage must meet or exceed liability limits allowed from time to time under the Colorado 
Governmental Immunities Act ("Insurance Coverage"). Upon written request from Grantor, 
Grantee shall provide a certificate of the Insurance Coverage. The Insurance Coverage shall 
provide that Grantor shall receive notice of cancellation of Grantee's policy at least 30 days prior 
to its termination. Without limiting Grantee's Insurance Coverage obligations, Grantor may also 
obtain and maintain its own insurance coverage. 

14. Modification. No provision or term of this Agreement may be amended, modified, 
revoked, supplemented, waived, or otherwise changed except by a written instrument duly executed 
by the Parties hereto or such others as may from time to time own an interest in the respective 
Properties. 

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes and incorporates the entire 
agreement among the Parties hereto concerning the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes 
any prior agreements concerning the subject matter hereof. 

16. Attorneys' Fees. If any action is commenced between the Parties concerning this 
Agreement or for the enforcement of rights and duties of any Party pursuant to this Agreement, 
the court shall award the substantially prevailing Party in the action its reasonable attorneys' fees 
in addition to any other relief that may be granted. 

17. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be impaired thereby. 

18. Successors and Assigns/Covenants Run With Land. The terms and conditions of 
this Agreement bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties, and their respective successors, assigns 
and personal representatives. The Trail Easement granted herein shall constitute a covenant 
running with the land and shall bind Grantor's Property described herein and inure to the benefit 
of and be binding upon the Parties, their grantees, and respective successors and assigns, and any 
persons claiming by, through or under them. 

19. No Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be waived except by written 
instrument signed by the Party to be charged with such waiver. Waiver by any Party of any 
agreement, condition, or provision contained in this Agreement will not be deemed to be a 
waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other agreement, condition, or provision 
contained in this Agreement. 

20. Construction of Agreement. This Agreement resulted from review and 
negotiations between the Parties and their attorneys. This Agreement will be construed to have 
been drafted by all of the Parties so that the rule of construing ambiguities against the drafter will 
have no force or effect. 

21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

5 

41



with the laws of the State of Colorado, without reference to conflicts of law principles. 

22. Authorization. Each Party is authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement 
and all necessary corporate or partnership action has been taken to authorize execution of this 
Agreement. 

23. Execution. The Parties shall execute and deliver such further documents as may be 
reasonably required in order to effect the intent of this Agreement. 

24. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed to constitute an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument; provided, however, that this Agreement will not become binding upon any Party 
unless and until executed (whether or not in counterpart) by all the Parties. 

25. Facsimile/E-Mail. Original signatures of the parties hereto on copies of this 
Agreement transmitted by facsimile or e-mail shall be deemed originals for all purposes 
hereunder and such copies shall be binding on all parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed and delivered this Agreement as 
of the date first above written. 

GRANTEE: 

Town of Rico 

STA TE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF DOLORES 

) 
) 

Subscribed to and acknowledged before me this~ day of Sa>mu f»ER , 2020 
by Barbara Betts as Mayor of the Town of Rico, a home rule municipality and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
My commission expires: 12 -7.ls ·d~. . 

N M ~ MAN Lil.IL ~ 
No~ry~ Publfc 7Joi\§' Public 

Stalll of Colorado 
Notary 10 1994401 son 

. Commission Expires 12/28/202~-

6 

42



GRANTOR: 

£t:L. 
Mik.eP,opek Alana Karen-

STA.qmOJ . @A l - - ) 
COUNTY OF ~- ~) 

~~ 

Subscn"&d to and, acknowl~<lged. before me this ~ day of 
by Mike Pope1t and .Maha hren • 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
My commission e~pires: "i;/·Jaj~ 'fl: 

State of, California 
County of Santa Clara 

Notafy 

Su ·at1 affll,sW1Jril lg~:-=--~ befo1' m~ 
-~:;,;::;:~!91~•-~b~ by, 

'e(t) . -
proved to me on-the ~asls of aatlsfictory evf~ence 
to be the per1on(1) who apjieated before ma. 

Slgnaturri 

E 

Jepb ,1i110 

43



EXHIBIT A-1 

A tracl or land In Section 1, Township 39 North, Range 11 West, N,M.P.M., which Is all lhat part orche 
Dolorn Plactr Claim. U.S. l\llnenl Survey #336, loCllted In lhe Pioneer Mlnlnc Dlstrlct. lylnc Wnt of 
Colorado Hlchway 145, bclnc more putlcularlr described ■s rollowi: 

Bqlnnlne al II point In said Section 1, which Is Corner No. 5, Dolores Placer Claim, U.S. llllnenl Sul"\'ty 
#336, from which polnl lhe Northeast Comer or uld Sttllon 1 bean Norlh 61 •51•04• East a distance ar 
961.68 ree1 and rrom which point U.S.LM. #3 bean South 77•28'58" Easl • dlst:ance or 923.03; 
thence Sou1h 80°33'36" Eau a distance or 33-UO reel alone lhe North line of lhe Dolores Placer Oahn, U.S. 
Mineral Survey #336, 10 • point on • fencellne; 
!hence South 12925'51" West a dlsunce of 126.82 feet aloni: • rencellne; 
lhence South 79947'45" East• dlslance ort39.65 feet alo11c • rencellne to the West ri&hl of way orColora.do 
Hl1,hw11y 145; 
!hence 337.45 reel alone lhe •re ora curve lo the ri&hl wllh I radius or 11143.86 fcct, the lone chord or which 
bean Soulh 21°28'03" Wesl • dll1aoce orJJ6.H ree111lone lhe rir,ht or way or Colorado State Hlshway 145; 
thence Souch 27•43'30" Wnl a distance or 196.50 reel alons the West rlghl arway or Colorado Slalt 
lllchway 145; 
thence S0111h 18°43'30" Wesl a distance or 165.50 feel alone the West rich• or way of Colorado S1a1e 
Hl&hway l◄S; 
I hence Sou1h 14•.u•3on Wnt • dlsrance or 69.00 reel ■loai: Che Wat rlcht or way or Colorado S111e Hlchway 
145; 
thence 4◄4.58 feet alone the arc or a curve lo lhe ten 1'ilh • radius or 1,498.39 fnt, lhe lone chord or which 
bun Soulb 16°13'18" West• dlslance or 442.95 feet alone the West rl&ht of way of Colorado Stale lllt:hway 
145; 
thence Sou lb 07•.u•JO" Wal • dlsrancc of 69.09 rec, a Iona: 1he Wnt rlsht or"'■)' of Colondo Stace Htehway 
145: 
thence South 03°-13'30" West a dis lance or 675.41 feet on lhe Wal rla:ht or way or Colorado Stale Htchwa)' 
145: 
thence West a distance of71M,8l feel 10 the Wcsl lint of the Dalores Placer Claim, U.S. llllnenl Survey #336: 
thence North 0"10'45" Eul • dlllanct of387.00 feel 1lon1 lhe Wesl line of lhe Dolores Placer Claim, U.S. 
Mineral S11rvey #336, ta Comer No. 4 or lhe Dolores Placer Claim, U.S, l\llneral Survey #JJ(i; 
lhence North 14°38'13" Easl a distance or 11145.15 feel alon1 the West line of lhe Dolores Placrr Claim. U.S. 
Mineral Survey #JJ(i, 10 Comer No, 5, Dolores Placer Cl:alm, U.S. Mlnend Survey #336, lhe poln1 ar 
beilanlns, 
Co11nl)' or Dolores, Stale of Colorado. 

LESS AND EXCEPT 1h01 portion of the above named mlnlnr, claim, tr any, wllhln a.erlappln& mlnlnc 
claims. 

44



Legend 
:» Popek Property Une 
:. Trail Alignment 07-1£►.2020 

45



. . 

EXHIBIT A-2 

A 1nc1ofland ia Sccllon2, Township39Nonll, a.a,c l1 Wcsr, N,M.P.M~Dolora CGluuy,Colondo, wblcb iulldl&lpartafchc 
Dalarca Placa-Cloim U.S. Miacnl Surtcy#Jl6, 1-cd in die l'iaclcu Mialo• Dimc1 orl>olan:s Counl1, Colonda, 1,;.,1 Won ar 
Colando Hipway 145, bciD; mon: pmicularly dCKrillcd IS (olJowa: 

Bqimun& u a polnl In 5"1ioo 2. Townahlp l9 Nani,, hnsc 11 Wm. N.M.P .M., DollllU Coumy, Colorado, which is Camcr No. 3, 
Dolores Pll=Clai111 U.S. Millcnl Survey 1336, fivmMich pai1t1he Nollh- -afsaid Scclicm 2 ban Nl0"◄3'21"E a dilllllccof 
◄Sl8.97fcct; 
Chcncc NO'IO'•U"E I dislaacc of 177◄.ll feel aloDa lhc Wat line oflhc Doloru Placer Oum U.S. Milu:ral San,:y '336, 10 Comer No. 4 
oflhc Dalaru Placer Claim U.S. Miaaal Surlc)' m6; 
Lhcr,cc Eu! a dislancc of70OJ rcc11a lltc Wes1 riJl,l-of.way line orColo...to Hl&J,way "45; 
dtaicc SOJ•◄J'JO"W a diS1111ccorJ6ll-'9 '1:a alon1 die Well ript-of.WI)' ofColondo Highway 145; 
dlcnc:c 502°16'l0"E adiSW1ccof uo.oo rcc11lon1 lhc West rir,lu-or-way of Colorado HiJliway 1◄,: 
Chcncc N16"16'J0"W I dis1111ccornoo l'ccl lkma die Well ri,clu-of-way of Colatado HiJl,way 145; 
thcnu SOl~J'QO•W a clutancc af 111.71 feel aloa& lhc Wat ,iJlil,of.wayofColando Hipway 145 la the Soalb lmc oflhe Dolara 
Placer Claim US. Mi_,,I Su,wy tll6; 
diau:c N79.,S'27"W a dil!Zcc or S 17.92 roet &10111 tile South 1iae ort>olorr:s Placer Claim U.S. Miacnl Survey 1336 1a die point or 
bq!ulna. 
Caw,ryof~Sw..ufC,,londo. 

46



47



48



49



50



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version 4: January 2025 

51



2  

Contents 

Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 5 

Property ownership ............................................................................................................................. 5 

Program snapshot ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Purpose: To create new or maintain/improve existing outdoor recreational trails .................................... 5 

Project types: ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

• Construction .................................................................................................................................. 5 

• Maintenance .................................................................................................................................. 5 

• Trail Stewardship ........................................................................................................................... 5 

• Planning ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

• Support ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Eligibility examples: ........................................................................................................................... 5 

• New trail or trailhead construction (Construction) ............................................................................ 5 

• Maintenance, re-route or reconstruction of existing trails ................................................................... 5 

• Trails Stewardship – This pilot program offers one year of funding for trail stewardship crews to focus 
on non-motorized trails maintenance. ..................................................................................................... 5 

Application ............................................................................................................................................... 6 

Documents ........................................................................................................................................... 6 

Pre-application Submission: Letter of Intent and Site Map ......................................................................... 6 

Wildlife Review Process and Guidelines .............................................................................................. 6 

Full Application .................................................................................................................................... 7 

Grant Scoring Criteria Questions .......................................................................................................... 7 

Timeline ............................................................................................................................................... 7 

Budget ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Maps & Photographs ............................................................................................................................ 9 

Letters of Support ................................................................................................................................. 9 

Resolution from Governing Body/Land Manager Authorization ............................................................. 9 

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) ........................................................................................... 10 

Environmental Forms .......................................................................................................................... 10 

Grant Application Checklist ................................................................................................................ 10 

Deadlines ............................................................................................................................................ 10 

Submission.......................................................................................................................................... 10 

Presentations ...................................................................................................................................... 11 

52



3  

Selection .................................................................................................................................................. 11 

Review process ................................................................................................................................... 11 

Timeline .............................................................................................................................................. 11 

Awarded Grants ....................................................................................................................................... 12 

Vendor W-9 Form ............................................................................................................................... 12 

Grantee Insurance .............................................................................................................................. 12 

Domestic content procurement requirements for federally funded projects ........................................ 12 

Which standard applies to the following products? ...................................................................... 12 

Product: Iron and steel ................................................................................................................. 12 

• Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) - YES. However, foreign sourced iron and steel are exempt if the 
amount is less than $2,500 (the total amount of iron and steel products as delivered to the project), 
or 0.1% of the total contract amount, whichever is greater. ........................................................... 12 

• Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – NO .......................................................................... 12 

• Product: Manufactured items ................................................................................................. 12 

• Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) – FHWA’s general waiver for manufactured products currently 
waives Buy America requirements for manufactured products. ..................................................... 12 

• Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – NO .......................................................................... 12 

• Product: Construction materials ............................................................................................. 12 

• Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) – NO .......................................................................................... 12 

• Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – DOT’s public interest waiver currently exempts 
BABA requirements for projects utilizing less than $500,000 in federal grant funds. ..................... 12 

Exclusions ........................................................................................................................................... 13 

Risk Assessments ................................................................................................................................ 13 

Procurement Requirements ................................................................................................................. 13 

Project Management ................................................................................................................................ 13 

Public Announcements ........................................................................................................................ 13 

Project Start ......................................................................................................................................... 13 

Reimbursements ................................................................................................................................. 13 

Grant Funds Advance .......................................................................................................................... 14 

Progress Reports ................................................................................................................................. 14 

Amendments ....................................................................................................................................... 14 

Project End ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Grant Close-Out Process .......................................................................................................................... 15 

CPW Final Inspection .......................................................................................................................... 15 

Final Report ........................................................................................................................................ 15 

53



4  

Unused Grant Funds ............................................................................................................................ 15 

Contacts ................................................................................................................................................... 16 

List of abbreviations ............................................................................................................................ 16 

AWM – Area Wildlife Manager .............................................................................................................. 16 

BABA – Build America, Buy America ..................................................................................................... 16 

CFR – Code of Federal Regulations ..................................................................................................... 16 

CPW – Colorado Parks and Wildlife ..................................................................................................... 16 

DNR – Department of Natural Resources ............................................................................................. 16 

EA – Environmental Assessment .......................................................................................................... 16 

FHWA – Federal Highway Administration ............................................................................................. 16 

GOCO – Great Outdoors Colorado ....................................................................................................... 16 

NEPA – National Environmental Policy Act ........................................................................................... 16 

NM – Non-Motorized ............................................................................................................................ 16 

OMB – Office of Management and Budget ............................................................................................ 16 

RTC – Regional Trail Coordinator ......................................................................................................... 16 

RTP –FHWA’s Regional Trail Program ................................................................................................. 16 

STC – State Trails Committee .............................................................................................................. 16 

UEI – Unique Entity Identifier ............................................................................................................... 16 

Appendix A .............................................................................................................................................. 17 

Detailed Listing of Eligible Budget Items ............................................................................................. 17 

• Match Only: ........................................................................................................................... 18 

Trail Crews: ................................................................................................................................. 18 

Awards for Volunteer Recognition: ...................................................................................................... 19 
 

54



 

Introduction 

The Colorado State Recreational Trails Grant Program funds projects to continue to improve 
outdoor recreation opportunities. This includes trail construction, maintenance, planning, support 
and stewardship, while protecting wildlife, habitat and cultural resources. The program is 
administered by Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) and partners with Great Outdoors Colorado 
(GOCO), the Colorado Lottery and the Federal Recreational Trails Program (RTP). 

Property ownership 

All properties on which State Trails’ funded projects take place must be under the control of the 
applicant or authorized agent and open to the public for at least 25 years. A deed, easement, 
license, long-term lease or other documentation may be requested as proof of ownership or 
public access rights. 

Program snapshot 

Purpose: To create new or maintain/improve existing outdoor recreational trails 

Project types: 
• Construction 
• Maintenance 
• Trail Stewardship 
• Planning 
• Support 

Eligibility examples: 
• New trail or trailhead construction (Construction) 
• Maintenance, re-route or reconstruction of existing trails 
• Enhancements or upgrades to existing trailheads (Construction or Maintenance – new versus 

improvements) 
• Trails Stewardship – This pilot program offers one year of funding for trail stewardship crews to 

focus on non-motorized trails maintenance. 
• Trail layout, design, engineering, feasibility or use studies, analysis of existing and proposed trails 

and master plans (Planning) 
• Building or enhancing of volunteer organizations, increasing capacity, training and education 

(Support) 
Applicants: 

• Local, County, Federal or Tribal government agencies 
• Recreation and Metro Districts 
• Charitable organizations (tax exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code) 

Grant request: 
• Construction & Maintenance – no minimum, up to $250,000 
• Planning & Support – no minimum, up to $45,000 
• Trails Stewardship – no minimum, up to $150,000 

Match: 
• 25% of the total grant request, 10% of that minimum amount must be cash 

Other requirements: 
• Grantee insurance – non-governmental organizations only. Compliance with applicable federal 

and state laws, regulations and policies (including Build America, Buy America) 
• All permits and clearances in hand before grant award 
• Project completion within 2 to 2.5 years of grant award 

 
4 

55



6  

Application 

Documents 

Grant application documents are available for download on the State Trails 
Program Non-Motorized Trails Grant webpage. 

Applicants may apply for two grants in a cycle, provided they are in different categories. The combined 
maximum amount for both projects is $300,000.00. Note: Trail Stewardship is in the maintenance 
category. 

Non-Motorized (NM) applications require completion of the following: 

Pre-application submission due early September 
• Letter of Intent 
• Project Site Map 

 
Full application submission due early October 

• Application form (project information, criteria questions, timeline) 
• Budget 
• Environmental forms (Non-Federal AND/OR Federal) 
• Vicinity maps, project maps & photographs 
• Letters of support 
• Governing Body Resolution 

 
Pre-application Submission: Letter of Intent and Site Map 

Letter of intent 
The letter of intent signifies an organization’s intention to submit a full application by the due 
date. It should be no more than one page and include the basic project scope of work, 
anticipated grant request amount, and land ownership details. Submit the letter as a PDF. 
 
Basic area map 
Create a basic map of the project area to accompany the letter of intent. Submit the map as a 
PDF. 
 
Pre-application documents should be emailed to trails@state.co.us in early September (see the 
website for specific dates). The State Trails team will forward your pre- application documents to 
the appropriate CPW Area Wildlife Manager(s) and Regional Trails Coordinator(s) where your 
project is located. This email will serve as the notification of your intention to apply for a non-
motorized trails grant and you will be copied on the email. 

 
This will initiate a pre-application review for identification of potential wildlife concerns by CPW as part of 
the Wildlife Assessment Guidelines. This process provides time for applicants to consider and begin 
addressing any concerns raised by CPW before the application deadline in October. Resolution of 
wildlife issues or concerns prior to the submission of grant applications is highly recommended. 

 
Wildlife Review Process and Guidelines 
All submitted grant applications are reviewed and evaluated by CPW wildlife staff for potential wildlife 
impacts. Read the Wildlife Review Process and the Wildlife Impacts Assessment Guidelines for more 
information on the wildlife review process and criteria. 

56

https://cpw.state.co.us/aboutus/Pages/TrailsGrantsNM.aspx
https://cpw.state.co.us/aboutus/Pages/TrailsGrantsNM.aspx
mailto:trails@state.co.us
https://cpw.widen.net/s/n7fzbqk2km/wildlife-review-process
https://cpw.widen.net/s/6jdbqzsrfj/wildlife-impacts-assessment-guidelines


7  

 
Full Application 

The application and other required documents should be emailed to trails@state.co.us. This will 
record specific details about your grant request, as noted in the bulleted list above. Applicants 
must have a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI). To find or request a UEI, go to sam.gov. 

Grant Scoring Criteria Questions 

Project specific questions are included in the application form, which are reviewed and scored by 
the subcommittee. The form contains 8 sections with a total of 20 questions. Each question is 
worth 5-15 points, for a maximum score of 100 points. Word/character limits are set to 
encourage concise and clear responses, with one to two paragraphs (2,500 characters 
maximum) recommended for open-ended questions unless indicated otherwise. 
 
When writing your scope of work, think about the following: 
 
WHO? Who will complete the work and who will oversee the project? Provide a brief description of your 
community or organization, highlighting its mission and purpose. 
 
WHAT: Explain what you are going to do or accomplish. What is the goal or the reason for your project? 
Break down the project into a list of specific activities to be completed. These should be quantifiable items 
that correspond to the categories on your budget. Include quantity or quality as part of your description of 
work to be performed. How long? How many feet/miles? What materials will be used? Is a specific 
standard or guideline being used? 
 
WHERE? Explain in detail the location of your project (City/County/USFS/BLM). List the land manager 
agency or municipality. 
 
Definitions: Define all acronyms and specialized terms that are used in your project description. 

 
Timeline 

The timeline records the proposed work schedule for the project. Note that: 

• The Trails Program can only reimburse grant funds for work that is initiated and completed 
AFTER the execution of the grant contract or purchase order. 

o The official execution date will be the day the State Controller signs the contract or 
finalized the purchase order. 

• Match funds may be used upon receipt of the award letter. 
• Grantees are allowed up to 2 ½ years from the award date to complete the project. Any 

extensions or modifications to the timeline after a grant is awarded requires CPW and 
GOCO/Federal approval. 

Budget 

A well-developed budget demonstrates that the project is properly planned and cost-effective. It 
also shows how the potential investment of grant funds will be leveraged. 

There is no minimum grant request for any category. Construction and Maintenance grants have a 
maximum request of $250,000, whereas Planning and Support grants have a maximum request of 
$45,000. A minimum of 25% of the total grant request must be secured as match and 10% of that 
minimum must be cash. Beyond cash, other forms of match include in-kind goods or services, 
volunteer hours, and staff time (outside of normal work hours or job function). The local share 
should be secured at the time of application submission. 

  

57

mailto:trails@state.co.us
https://sam.gov/content/home


8  

 

• Organize your project into categories. You may use the provided categories on the budget 
form or create your own. 

• Provide a breakdown of each line item by detailing the work required and the vendor or 
service provider associated with that work. You must enter the price per unit, quantity and 
total for each line item (avoid lump sums and rounding up or down); 

o Keep in mind, we do not want to see a line by line engineering budget. Mark the 
items appropriately under the provided categories and give enough detail to 
understand how the funds will be used. 

• Sources of Funds: 
o Cash – List each funding source on separate rows within the budget sheet top 

section. Be sure to include the State Trails grant request under the appropriate 
column. 

o In-Kind – List each in-kind contributor on separate rows within the budget sheet. 
Indicate the amount under the Project Match column. 

• If you have a multiple location project, you will need to submit a budget for each project. 
Review the multi-project budget form on the CPW website. 

• All matching resources must be CPW grant eligible costs and project costs for match 
must occur after receipt of the award letter. 

• For Federally Funded Projects: RTP projects are subject to a combination of Buy 
America (23 U.S.C.313) and Build America, Buy America laws (s. 70914 of the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act). BABA applies unless there is an applicable waiver. 
More information is listed under the Awarded Grants section later in this document. 

Eligible costs generally include: 

• Consultant or contracted services 
• Permanent or Seasonal Staff Salaries 
• Rental Costs 
• Trail Tools 
• Supplies and materials (lumber, road base, crusher fines, plants, tools, etc.); 
• Youth Programs 
• Land Acquisition for Trail Development 
• Awards for Volunteer Recognition 
• Design and Engineering (Planning Grants only) 
• Shipping, mobilization and traffic control 
• Software and Computers (MATCH ONLY – Planning/Support Grants) 
• Emergency beacon locators 
• Per Diem – lodging/meals for remote locations only 
• Project Management/Administration (no more than 5% of the total grant award) 

o Needs to be labelled in the budget as record keeping, accounting, and/or reporting. 
Ineligible costs generally include: 

• Uniforms/Law Enforcement 
• Work completed prior to the grant award and signed contract 
• Expenses related to the promotion of the organization or fundraising 
• Components that do not have direct benefit to trail users 
• Vehicle repair/maintenance 
• Alcohol 
• Food (outside of eligible per-diem) 
• Office supplies 
• Programming and/or outreach (Construction/Maintenance projects only) 
• Tax 
• Contingencies 

58



9  

For more detail on eligible costs, please refer to Appendix A. A sample budget may also be 
provided upon request. 

Submit the budget as an unprotected Excel file. 

Maps & Photographs 

There is a 5-page limit for maps and photographs. If more than 5 pages are submitted, the extra 
will not be reviewed or submitted as part of the application. Provide a State-wide vicinity map, a 
local vicinity map and a project site map. Label each map appropriately for the reviewers. Review 
the criteria for each map below. Provide any photographs of the site in its current condition that 
support the application and project narrative. Consider submitting maps and photographs as a 
collage or other format in a single PDF document (no more than five pages in total). 

• State-wide Vicinity Map: Provide a state-wide map and mark where the project is located. 
• Local Vicinity Map: Provide either a topographic or street map of the area (i.e. 1:100,000). 

For remote or county areas, provide a topographic map and in urban areas, a street map. 
Include any readily recognizable landmarks for reader orientation. 

• Project Site Map: Show the specific project site and any additional details. Provide a 
topographic may or equivalent aerial photograph for remote and county areas and a street 
map for urban projects e.g.; 1:24,000). Include any recognizable landmarks for reader 
orientation. Provide an inventory of the names of the trails(s) or trail system and where 
work will be performed. Include the following: 
• Project title 
• Range/township/section 
• Latitude and longitude based on site CenterPoint 
• Street/trail names 
• Public entrance points 
• Known major project elements per the site plan (trailheads, new trails, problem areas) 
• North arrow 

The project area or plan should be represented on the map. If your project involves multiple sites 
or relates to volunteer work and engagement, provide an estimated map of the work area. Submit 
the map(s) as a PDF document. 

Letters of Support 

Letters of support can emphasize the need for a project, or the consequences of it not proceeding. 
They can also confirm the local match amount, or validate the applicant’s experience managing 
similar projects. A maximum of five letters can be submitted and must be included as part of the 
application. CPW will not accept letters mailed directly to the State Trails Program. Letters from 
clubs, groups or individuals working on the project should be avoided. Please do not send letters of 
support from CPW offices or staff. Submit letters of support in a combined PDF file. 

Resolution from Governing Body/Land Manager Authorization 

Provide a signed letter of resolution from the governing body that specifies the applicant’s ultimate 
decision-makers are aware of and support the application, recognize their financial and legal 
obligations, support the project’s completion and long-term maintenance and verify the target 
property will be under the control of the applicant and/or partner for at least 25 years. 

In the event the governing body does not meet before the grant submission deadline, a letter of 
support will suffice until a resolution can be procured. The resolution must be received by the State 
Trails Program no later than the first business day of December. 

59



10  

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 

Projects on federal lands must have Environmental Assessment (EA) or National Environment 
Policy Act (NEPA) documents approved and finalized to be considered for funding. 

All Federal permits must be completed by the applicant presentation date (early January). 
Other local permits and clearances must be completed prior to the grant award (finalized 
purchase order or contract). 

Environmental Forms 

Environmental forms are important for the assessment of the project and any specific 
environmental concerns. There are two types of forms for projects on federal land or non-federal 
land. Environmental forms are required for Construction and Maintenance grants, but not for 
Planning and Support grants. The Federal Environmental form is only to be completed if all or 
part of the project is located on federal land. 

The Non-Federal Environmental form is specific to flora and fauna. Applicants are responsible for 
completing this form with an authorized local government or environmental consultant to address 
the following environmental impacts: securing all necessary permits, licenses, clearances, and 
environmental analysis documentation necessary to comply with local, state, or federal law. 

CPW staff will complete a separate evaluation of wildlife and aquatic impacts during the project 
review. 

Grant Application Checklist 

All applicants should complete and return the checklist, making sure that everything checked off is 
included in the application packet. If a particular document will be delayed, please make a note in 
the comments section of the form. 

Deadlines 

There are two deadlines to consider when submitting a NM Grant application: 

• Early September – pre-application submission 
• Early October - full application submission 

Submission 

Applicants should send the pre-application submission (due in September) by email to 
trails@state.co.us. The full-application submission is due in early October. The specific dates will 
be posted on the website. If file sizes are too large to email, contact CPW for a file sharing link. 
Note that applicants may submit two applications per grant cycle, up to a maximum grant request 
of $300,000. The two applications may not be in the same category. If you have any questions 
regarding what you can submit during a grant cycle, please contact the Non-Motorized Grant 
Administrator or the State Trails Program. 

  

60

mailto:trails@state.co.us


11  

Presentations 

Applicants are asked to make themselves available in early January to provide a 15-minute 
presentation (10 minutes plus 5 minute Q&A) to the subcommittee. Applicants are welcome to use 
any format they wish but it is strongly recommended to consider PowerPoint to convey key project 
information. Applicant should include a specific slide answering any questions that have arisen 
during grant review (these are provided to applicants beforehand). The current format for 
presentations includes in-person and virtual, depending on the applicants preference. A copy of 
the presentation is to be emailed to trails@state.co.us ahead of time. 

Selection 

Review process 

CPW goes through a multi-step review process to distribute grant funds. CPW compiles a group of 
volunteer reviewers, with significant and diverse knowledge in conservation projects, to serve on 
subcommittees for three project categories: Construction, Maintenance and Planning/Support. The 
entire process includes grant review, scoring, public comment periods and then the 
recommendation of funding. More specifically, it involves: 

• CPW Trails Program staff review to ensure applications are complete and eligible; 
• CPW regional field staff review and identification of any local concerns (which can then be 

addressed by the applicant early in the process); 
• Subcommittee review, scoring, ranking and recommendation for funding to the State Trails 

Committee (STC) (the subcommittee includes representatives from the STC, GOCO, CPW 
Trails Program staff, and outside peer reviewers); 

• STC review and recommendation for funding to the CPW Commission; 
• Final review and approval by the CPW Commission 

This process invites public review and comment at four separate stages: upon submission and 
posting of the applications on CPW’s website, before the application review subcommittees, before 
the State Trails Committee and before the Parks and Wildlife Commission. 

Timeline 

The timeline for successful applications is 8-9 months from application submission to contracting, 
provided there are no delays or issues with the application. A snapshot is provided below. Note: 
grant dollars cannot be spent on ground-disturbing work until the contract or purchase order with 
CPW is finalized. MATCH FUNDS may begin to be used upon receipt of award letter. 

The project end date is based on the applicant’s submitted timeline and is assigned by CPW 
Contracts Department. 

ALL APPLICATIONS: 
• August: Grant round opens 
• September: Pre-application submission is due 
• October: Full application is due. CPW staff review 
• November-December: CPW and subcommittee review 
• January: Applicant presentations, subcommittee scoring, ranking and funding 

recommendations to the State Trails Committee. 
• February: State Trails Committee funding recommendations to the CPW Commission 
• March: CPW Commission review and approval to award grants. CPW and applicants 

commence additional documentation needed for procurement. 
• April – June: CPW commences contracting. 

61

mailto:trails@state.co.us


12  

Awarded Grants 

Following the approval of the CPW Commission, all projects should be prepared to complete 
additional documentation for their grant application. In most cases, CPW staff will reach out ahead 
of the Commission decision to prepare documentation in the case the project is approved. 

Vendor W-9 Form 

A vendor W-9 form may be required if the organization is not already listed in the State of Colorado 
financial database. This form will go to the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) accounting 
team for review and submission to create a unique vendor/customer number for your organization. 
This number will be used as part of the reimbursement process for your organization. 

Grantee Insurance 

The insurance requirements are specific for non-governmental agencies. Grantees must secure 
and maintain certain insurance policies, dependent upon type of project and organization. 
Insurance policies must be submitted to the State Trails Program during the contracting period. 
Contracts and POs will not be finalized without them. The required documents (outlined below) are 
sent out with your award letter. 

• Worker’s Compensation 
• General Liability 
• Automotive Liability 
• NOTE: All policies must list State of Colorado as “Additionally Insured” 

Domestic content procurement requirements for federally funded projects 

Federally funded Recreational Trails Program (RTP) projects are subject to a combination of Buy 
America (23 U.S.C.313) and Build America, Buy America laws (s. 70914 of the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act). 

Which standard applies to the following products? 

Product: Iron and steel 
• Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) - YES. However, foreign sourced iron and steel are exempt if the 

amount is less than $2,500 (the total amount of iron and steel products as delivered to the project), or 
0.1% of the total contract amount, whichever is greater. 

• Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – NO 
 

• Product: Manufactured items 
• Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) – FHWA’s general waiver for manufactured products currently waives 

Buy America requirements for manufactured products. 
• Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – NO 

 
• Product: Construction materials 
• Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) – NO 
• Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – DOT’s public interest waiver currently exempts BABA 

requirements for projects utilizing less than $500,000 in federal grant funds. 
 

Where applicable, grantees are responsible for determining that a product or material used for 
the project is American made, along with keeping records of vendor certifications to demonstrate 
compliance. It applies to entire projects, even if they are funded with federal and non-federal 
funds. 

62



13  

 
Exclusions 

• Items and materials not permanently incorporated into the project (e.g. tools or equipment 
brought to the site and removed at or before project completion). 

• Other general or project specific product or material waivers as approved by FHWA and 
OMB. 

CPW’s RTP grant administrator will provide grantees with a form to acknowledge that they have 
read and understand, and will comply with all requirements under the Buy America (23 U.S.C. 
313) and Build America, Buy America laws (s. 70914) of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs 
Act). For more information on the requirements, refer to FHWA’s Buy America Construction  
Program Guide or Q&A page, where updates are often posted. 

 
Risk Assessments 

CPW conducts risk assessments for federally funded grant awards. The purpose of this form is to 
assess the risk of your organization completing the project. For grantees who have received 
funding before, the report contains past success with CPW grant management. For new grantees, 
the report looks at management of similar projects or grants to review the risk. A key aspect of the 
risk assessment is an audit review (specifically an A-133 audit report). 

The A-133 audit – or similar report – may be requested. Prepare to provide the information if 
receiving federal funding for your project. 

Procurement Requirements 

Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB), 2 CFR 200 Uniform Guidance, procurement 
and RFP/Bid requirements apply to all CPW Trail Grants. It is the grant recipient’s responsibility to 
make sure they meet all federal requirements or contracts awarded to sub recipients. The full 
federal OMB, 2 CFR 200 Uniform Procurement requirements can be viewed here: e-CFR. Further 
information can be found at Colorado OMB Guidance, including links to OMB Procurement 
Standards and Stand Alone Definitions. 

 

Project Management 

Public Announcements 

Funding is not guaranteed until final approval by the CPW Commission. Any funding announcements 
relating to the project should wait until after the grant is awarded. 
Project Start 

Project work can begin after grant award and finalization of the contract or purchase order with 
CPW. Contracts will have a series of DocuSign communications sent to you and other individuals 
within CPW. Once the award is signed by the State Controller you are able to spend CPW funds 
for the project. Purchase orders will be sent directly to the grantee upon completion, and do not 
require the DocuSign process. 

Reimbursements 

CPW uses a reimbursement model, where grantees incur project costs before seeking 
reimbursement from CPW. Spending on the project must begin no later than three months after 

63

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/construction/cqit/buyam.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/construction/cqit/buyam.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/construction/contracts/buyam_qa_baba.cfm
https://www.ecfr.gov/
https://osc.colorado.gov/financial-operations/statewide-internal-audit/omb-guidance


14  

contract execution unless written approval is granted by the State Trails Program. Submission of 
invoice/reimbursement documentation should be sent throughout the open period of the grant. Do 
not wait until the project is complete. Quarterly reimbursement submissions are preferred. 

For Non-Motorized Grants, we do not require a specific grant to match ratio for each 
reimbursement but it is recommended to have the 75% - 25% on each reimbursement submitted. It 
is more beneficial and keeps everyone on top of all required match for the project. 

It is important to remember that any costs submitted for reimbursement must: 

• Be dated after the CPW contract or purchase order effective date (unless it is listed in the 
project budget as match and can be after the award letter date); 

• Follow the submitted budget; 
• Include a copy of the invoice(s)/receipt(s) and proof of payment for each expense (e.g. bank 

statements or credit card statements); 
• Include pay stubs, timesheets and proof of payment if submitting salaries/wages; and 
• Have account or personal information redacted from all documents submitted. 

Sufficient records to prove the value of in-kind donations should accompany the reimbursement 
request. For example, volunteer or staff hours should include timesheets or logs calculated by an 
hourly wage. Donated goods, supplies, and services need to come with a signed letter from the 
donator detailing the information. 

A grant reimbursement form will be emailed with other award documents, or may be requested 
from a grant administrator. Submit all reimbursements using the form provided. 

Grant Funds Advance 

A grantee may request an advance of 60% (non-Federal agency) or 100% (Federal agency) of 
the grant award. If the advance is approved, you will need to follow similar reimbursement 
guidelines when charging to the grant to track spending. On the grant reimbursement form, 
there is an option for “Minus Advances” where you will indicate the advance awarded. It is 
recommended to submit grant advance adjustment packets quarterly. 

Progress Reports 

Grantees must submit quarterly progress reports to CPW throughout the project. A template will 
be emailed with other award documents, or may be requested from a grant administrator. This 
report captures the status of the project, work completed and details of any problems or delays. 
Additionally, provide any change in contact on these progress reports (or in an email) if needed. 
Provide the reports within 5 days of the end of each quarter: March 31st, June 30th, September 30th 
and December 31st. 

Amendments 

Grantees should reach out to CPW if there is a change in project scope or timeline after the grant 
award. To request any changes, grantees must contact CPW at least six months before the 
contract or purchase expiration date. 

All budget revisions must be reviewed and approved by the State Trails Program. If changes are 
significant (20% or above), the request may be reviewed by the State Trails Committee. Grantees 
may not spend grant funds under revision until that approval is secured. Contact the Trails 
Program to start the process. 

  

64



15  

Project End 

Projects must be completed within 2.5 years of grant award, unless an extension has been 
granted. CPW will undertake final processes to confirm completion of the process and review all 
final documentation before moving to the close-out process. It is important to keep grantee contact 
information up to date throughout the life of the grant for a smooth administration process. 

Grant Close-Out Process 
The close-out process for the grant begins when the final reimbursement is processed and/or at 
the project end date. In order to close-out the grant, the following information needs to be 
provided/completed. Upon receiving all documentation, your grant administrator will send a close- 
out letter for your records. 

CPW Final Inspection 

The final project inspection (construction and maintenance projects) is completed by the Regional 
Trail Coordinator(s) (RTC) of your project’s region. The RTC will be in contact to set up a time to 
inspect the project around the grant end date or after completion of your project, if it is before the 
designated end date. The RTC will walk the site or project and review everything outlined in your 
project scope. Planning and Support grant recipients must submit a final plan and/or a final report 
prior to close out. 

Final Report 

After your project is complete, CPW asks for a final report for the entire project. The template for 
the final report is the same as for the progress reports and can be downloaded from the CPW NM 
Trails Grants webpage. 

Include photos of the project work. This can be before and after photos, volunteer/staff 
engagement, working photos etc. Include any relevant project statistics for the whole project. The 
template for the final report is not required and you are welcome to use what your organization 
completes for final reports. 

Unused Grant Funds 

While we prefer that all grant funds are spent for the project, we understand that some funds may 
be left over at the end of the project. If that is the case, grantees will need to provide the following 
statement: 

We have submitted the final reimbursement for [grant #] and will not use the remaining 
[dollar amount] of grant funds. The funds are returned to the State. 

Upon receipt of the statement, the final reimbursement can be processed. The statement can be 
sent in an email or letter format. 

  

65



16  

Contacts 
For assistance with your grant application or specific questions about your existing project, contact: 

Pam O’Malley | Non-Motorized Grants Administrator | Colorado Parks and Wildlife 
Phone: 720-622-4131 | Email: pam.omalley@state.co.us 

Trails General Email | trails@state.co.us | Colorado Parks and Wildlife 

Regional Trail Coordinators | Colorado Parks and Wildlife 

Northeast Region: Luke Svare | (720) 582-6948 | lucas.svare@state.co.us 
Southeast Region: Tappan Brown | (719) 355-9405 | tappan.brown@state.co.us 
Northwest Region: Randy Engle | (970) 434-6862 x4221| randy.engle@state.co.us 
Southwest Region: Josh Stoudt | (303) 548-8206 | joshua.stoudt@state.co.us 

List of abbreviations 
 
AWM – Area Wildlife Manager 
BABA – Build America, Buy America 
CFR – Code of Federal Regulations 
CPW – Colorado Parks and Wildlife 
DNR – Department of Natural Resources 
EA – Environmental Assessment 
FHWA – Federal Highway Administration 
GOCO – Great Outdoors Colorado 
NEPA – National Environmental Policy Act 
NM – Non-Motorized 
OMB – Office of Management and Budget 
RTC – Regional Trail Coordinator 
RTP –FHWA’s Regional Trail Program 
STC – State Trails Committee 
UEI – Unique Entity Identifier 

  

66

mailto:pam.omalley@state.co.us
mailto:trails@state.co.us
mailto:lucas.svare@state.co.us
mailto:tappan.brown@state.co.us
mailto:randy.engle@state.co.us
mailto:joshua.stoudt@state.co.us


17  

Appendix A 

Detailed Listing of Eligible Budget Items 

Consultant or Contracted Services: 

• Professional trail building services to construct, reconstruct, reroute and maintain trails that may 
include the final preconstruction trail alignment pin flagging. 

• Professional building services to construct bridges, railings, ramps, fences and retaining 
structures as well as bank stabilization, trail reclamation, revegetation and erosion control 

• Professional services to mitigate on-the-ground environmental and wildlife impacts 
• Professional services to build trailhead parking and install restrooms 
• Concrete and/or asphalt services 
• Youth or Conservation Crews 

Salary for Employees: 
Permanent or seasonal/non-permanent staff salary for work completed during the implementation 
of the proposed project is an eligible cost. 

• Trail layout and design in the field 
• Prepare for trail work (sharpen tools, maintenance or inspection of equipment) 
• Construction, reconstruct, reroute and maintain trails 
• Supervise or lead a work crew 
• Hike to the project site to work 
• Trail construction (i.e. bridges, fencing, ramps, drains, rock steps, retaining structures, etc.) 
• Trail restoration and stabilization (i.e. bank stabilization, seeding, check dams, erosion 

control etc.) 
• Trail links and/or connections to large trail networks 
• Per Diem for approved remote locations and 
• Grant administration (grant tracking, billing, budgeting): 5% max of grant award 

Rental Costs: 

• Support or Planning Grants only: 
o Room or booth rental for volunteer outreach or trails training 

• All projects: 
o Vehicles 
o Equipment (i.e. motorized wheel barrow, cement mixer, Pionjar drill, etc.) 
o GPS Units, Clinometers 
o Heavy Equipment (i.e. skid steer, mini excavator, etc.) 

Trail Tools: 

• Digging tools (picks, paleo picks, etc.) 
• Material moving tools (shovels, posthole diggers, wheel barrows, buckets etc.) 
• Restoration tools (clippers, gardening rakes, McLeods, stakes, etc.) 
• Saws (chainsaws, crosscuts, handsaws, etc.) 
• Rock moving/quarrying tools 
• Other 

 
Supplies and Materials: 

• Trail surface materials (crusher fines, road base, concrete, gravel, etc.) 
• Hardware (screws, bolts, rebar, spikes, etc.) 
• Signs (i.e. directional, kiosks, junctions, re-vegetation, closures, etc.) 

67



18  

• Lumber (for bridges, puncheons, turnpikes, decking, boardwalks) 
• Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 
• Name badges for volunteer project work 
• Restoration materials (erosion control (EC) matting, seed, plants, etc.) 
• Nordic Sports Only: 

o Grooming equipment for cross-country skiing and snowshoeing – limited to 
snowmobiles and ATV/Utility related drags or track attachments. 

Design and Engineering (Planning Grants Only): 
100% of design or engineering costs associated with trails development projects are eligible. 

• Landscape architectural professional services for conceptual design 
• Engineer or surveyor services for development of construction drawings and specifications 
• Biologist or archaeologist professional services for environmental and cultural review, and 

final approval of site location 
• Match Only: 

o Staff salary for development of proper NEPA documentation 
o Staff salary for public meetings for alternative development, public input, and 

review 

Volunteers and Crews: 
The State Trails Program supports and promotes the use of crews and volunteers on all applicable 
projects. If you plan to use a crew on your project, contact the program directly to confirm rates 
and review project appropriateness. The following items are eligible grant and match expenses: 

• Weekly rates for trail crews (i.e. Youth Corps and Conservation Corps) 
• Salary and supervision of trail crews 
• Site visits to set up crew work 
• Final inspections/visits to close out work 
• Volunteer time 

Trail Crews: 

Sample programs include, but are not limited to: 

Colorado Youth Corps Association (CYCA) – Crew rates for conservation corps accredited by 
the CYCA are eligible costs. Review the following base rates (subject to change based on 
location, program, crew size and technical experience). 

 
Sample Rates from 2025. Please visit the CYCA website for contacts and other information. 
 
Day Crew: 

• Weekly price: $12,100.00 
• CYCA Admin fee: $1,250.00 

 
Camping Crew: 

• Weekly price: $13,420.00 
• CYCA Admin fee: $1,450.00 

 
Specialty Crew: 

• Weekly rate: $11,641.29 
• CYCA Admin fee: $1,441.29 

 
Hybrid Crew: 

• Weekly rate: $13,800.00 
• CYCA Admin fee: $1,272.94 

 
 

68

https://www.cyca.org/


19  

Applicant should work directly with their local corps to agree on a rate and coordinate work schedules and 
opportunities. 

Volunteers: Volunteer hours qualify for In-Kind match funds. The current rate can be found on 
Value of Volunteer Time. The link contains helpful information regarding quantifying volunteer time 
as well. 

Land Acquisitions for Trail Development 
You may use the value of land purchased or donated specifically for the purpose of trail 
development as cash or in-kind match if it is purchased within 3 years of the grant decision date. 
Land Value – Match Documentation Requirements 

o To document the property’s value you must submit a summary form or other 
relevant portions of a qualified appraisal including: 

• The identity of the appraiser 
• The effective date of the appraisal 
• A description of the property to be appraised (street address, legal 

description, other relevant descriptor) 
• The property’s appraised value 

o More information may be requested following the summary 
o Land donations from government entities to another will only be considered under 

special circumstances 

Awards for Volunteer Recognition: 

• Must be for trail work 
• Each individual item may not exceed $30 in value 
• Examples: hiking sticks, pedometers, water bottles, t-shirts, backpacks, gift cards 

Software and Computers: Can be used as MATCH only for Planning and Support grants. 

Emergency Locators: The locator and the monthly subscriptions are eligible for all grants. 

69

https://independentsector.org/research/value-of-volunteer-time/


MONTELORESCOALITION.ORG

WHO WE ARE
The Montelores Coalition is a community-driven partnership advancing sustainable outdoor recreation, conservation, and
economic vitality across Montezuma and Dolores Counties. We work with a wide range of representatives and stakeholders
including public agencies, tribal leadership, local governments, ranchers, recreation groups, educators, business owners, and
conservation advocates who bring diverse perspectives and a shared commitment to shaping our region’s outdoor future. 

Lorem ipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur

adipiscing elit. Proin imperdiet tincidunt

nulla, vel finibus mi vulputate sed.

Walk A Mile in Our Shoes: A

storytelling event and podcast

highlighting diverse outdoor

experiences and perspectives

UPCOMING & PROPOSED PROJECTS

CARA@MONTELORESCOALITION.ORG 970-570-3289

Wildlife & Resource Mapping

Tool: A data-driven platform

for identifying high

conservation value areas

Strike Teams: Hands-on crews

tackling derelict fencing, trail

maintenance,  and habitat

resilience

Ranching  Art Contest: A

creative project educating the

public on the ecological and

cultural role of ranching

VISION
To create a sustainable future for the Montelores

region by aligning outdoor recreation, conservation,
and community well-being through collaborative,

locally-driven planning.

VALUES

Collaboration
Stewardship
Accessibility

HOW TO

GET

INVOLVED

Your voice matters. Whether you’re a lifelong resident, a new community member, or simply someone who cares
about the future of the Montelores region, there’s a place for you in the Coalition. You can support our work by:

Respect
Community
Transparency

SIGN UP FOR OUR NEWSLETTER FOLLOW US ON FACEBOOK FOLLOW US ON INSTAGRAM

Signing up for our newsletter to stay informed and engaged
Following us on social media and sharing our updates
Reaching out with questions, personal experiences, or ideas
Connecting us with underrepresented voices in your community
Donating to help fund community-driven outdoor planning and programs

Together, we can build a plan that reflects the needs, values, and vision of everyone who calls this place home.

70



2023

2024

HOW WE GOT HERE & WHERE WE ARE GOING

The Town of Dolores, with support from Montezuma and Dolores counties, is awarded a
capacity grant to fund the forming of a regional partnership from Colorado Parks and
Wildlife (CPW).

Our Roundtable completed a Draft Outdoor Recreation and Conservation Plan grounded
in community values, state strategy, and local plans. This Fall, the Coalition will host a
series of meetings to get local government and community input on the Plan. This
feedback will allow us to create a finalized Plan that reflects the wants and needs of the
community. 

We’ve recently applied for funding to put the Outdoor Recreation and Conservation Plan
into action, launch vetted community-driven programs, and support partner-led
initiatives throughout the region.

2025

The Montelores Coalition hired a coordinator, established an Executive Committee, and
developed a project plan, budget, governing documents, and brand identity. We also
hosted a successful stakeholder welcome event in partnership with Pueblo Community
College, CPW, and Envision Chaffee County. Throughout the year, we convened a
Roundtable of engaged representatives from diverse stakeholder groups and user
communities to guide our shared vision.

WHAT’S NEXT?
✔ Write a letter of support for our funding application

 ✔ Help us align local goals with implementation priorities
 ✔ Invite us to present at your next board or planning meeting

 ✔ Promote opportunities for public input through upcoming meetings and online comment tools

71



TO:           Town of Rico Boad of Trustees   

FROM:         Chauncey McCarthy, Rico Town Manager 

SUBJECT:   Park Pavilion Rental Policy Memo 
 
Background: 
The Town Park Pavilion is a key community asset available for public use. A formal 
rental policy will provide clarity for residents, staff, and event organizers regarding 
reservation procedures, permitted uses, and prohibited activities. The following draft is a 
baseline for the boards review and discussion. This draft incorporates common 
municipal best practices and addresses specific needs for the Town of Rico. 

Draft Policy Components for Consideration: 
1. Reservations & Scheduling 

o Reservations must be made a minimum of 3 business days in advance, 
during regular business hours (Monday–Thursday). 

o Reservations can be made no more than 3 months in advance. 

o All reservations are for the entire day. 

o Rentals are for pavilion space only. Skatepark, parking areas, trails, and 
surrounding park grounds remain open to the public. 

o Pavilion is not available for rental on holidays. 

2. Fees & Deposits (to be determined by Board) 

o Daily Rental Fee: $__________ 

o Cleaning/Property Deposit: $__________ (refundable if all guidelines 
are met) 

o Non-Refundable Fees: All fees are non-refundable except in the case of 
Town cancellation due to weather or other unforeseen circumstances. 

o Reservations are not confirmed until payment is received. 

3. Special Event Permits 

o Required for events anticipating 100+ attendees, using amplified sound, or 
requiring traffic control, reservation of the parking lot 

o A Special Event is defined as a non-town sponsored event using town 
facilities for large public gatherings or requiring additional 
accommodations (e.g., tents, temporary buildings). 

o Private gatherings at or below the posted occupancy limit (e.g., family 
reunions, birthdays) are not considered Special Events. 

72



4. Prohibited Uses 

o No charcoal grills. 

o No bouncy castles, inflatable gyms, or obstacle courses. 

o No animal displays or petting zoos. 

o No selling of merchandise, food, or other products. 

5. User Responsibilities 

o Groups are responsible for table and chair setup and returning furniture to 
its original location. 

o All decorations, including tape, must be removed, and the pavilion and 
surrounding area cleaned after use. 

o Garbage must be disposed of in designated receptacles; bringing a push 
broom, additional trash bags and cleaning supplies are recommended. 

o Tables may not be removed from the pavilion. 

6. Day-of Enforcement 
o If the pavilion is occupied during a valid reservation, the renter may 

request the party to leave. 

o Proof of reservation must be shown (digital or printed confirmation/receipt, 
and Special Event Permit if applicable). 

o Daily reservations will be posted on signage near the pavilion. 

7. Staff Discretion 

o Town of Rico staff have the discretion to interpret and make decisions 
related to the Pavilion Rental Policy as needed, including addressing 
unforeseen circumstances or conflicts not expressly covered in the policy. 

Discussion Points for the Board: 
• Finalize rental fee and deposit amounts. 

• Confirm lead time for reservations and maximum advance booking window. 

• Determine if additional prohibited uses should be included. 

• Decide on specific holiday exclusions. 

• Clarify enforcement procedures for day-of conflicts. 

• Confirm the scope of staff discretion and any limits on decision-making authority. 

 

 

73


	Board of Trustees August Meeting 2025 Memo
	Consideration of a letter of support for Region 9 Economic Development District grant application to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs to fund automation of the Housing Needs Assessment (Pg. XX-XX)
	Selection of Rico Community Church committee (Pg. XX-XX)
	Consideration of liquor license special event permit, Rico Trails Alliance 503 C event on October 2, 2025 at Fireweed Café   (Pg. xx-xx)
	Consideration of Resolution 2025-04 a resolution of the Town of Rico, Board of Trustees supporting the submission of a grant application for funds from Colorado Parks and Wildlife non-motorized trail fund  (Pg. XX-XX)
	Rico Geothermal Collation update (Pg. XX-XX)
	Montelores Coalition Update (Pg. XX-XX)
	Election update and timeline
	Colorado 150th America 250th July 4th weekend celebration
	Pavilion rental policy (Pg. XX-XX)

	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES July 9 2025 docx
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES July 2025 docx
	general
	park
	street
	water
	Region 9 EDD Letter of Support for Grant
	Church committee letter of interest
	Church emily nolan
	church sarah lyons
	Jill Jordan Chruch
	Joanna Church
	Pam church letter
	Pat bailey Chruch
	CPW Grant RESOLUTION 2025-04
	20250812 SIGNED RTA Oct 2 SE Liq License App Exhibits Control Plan
	20201117 SIGNED MOU RTA+Town R
	NM_Grant-Program-Manual_25
	Introduction
	Property ownership
	Program snapshot
	Purpose: To create new or maintain/improve existing outdoor recreational trails
	Project types:
	 Construction
	 Maintenance
	 Trail Stewardship
	 Planning
	 Support
	Eligibility examples:
	 New trail or trailhead construction (Construction)
	 Maintenance, re-route or reconstruction of existing trails
	 Trails Stewardship – This pilot program offers one year of funding for trail stewardship crews to focus on non-motorized trails maintenance.

	Application
	Documents
	Pre-application Submission: Letter of Intent and Site Map
	Wildlife Review Process and Guidelines
	Full Application
	Grant Scoring Criteria Questions
	Timeline
	Budget
	Maps & Photographs
	Letters of Support
	Resolution from Governing Body/Land Manager Authorization
	National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
	Environmental Forms
	Grant Application Checklist
	Deadlines
	Submission
	Presentations

	Selection
	Review process
	Timeline

	Awarded Grants
	Vendor W-9 Form
	Grantee Insurance
	Domestic content procurement requirements for federally funded projects
	Which standard applies to the following products?
	Product: Iron and steel
	 Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) - YES. However, foreign sourced iron and steel are exempt if the amount is less than $2,500 (the total amount of iron and steel products as delivered to the project), or 0.1% of the total contract amount, whichever is gre...
	 Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – NO
	 Product: Manufactured items
	 Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) – FHWA’s general waiver for manufactured products currently waives Buy America requirements for manufactured products.
	 Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – NO
	 Product: Construction materials
	 Buy America (23 U.S.C. 313) – NO
	 Build America, Buy America (s. 70914) – DOT’s public interest waiver currently exempts BABA requirements for projects utilizing less than $500,000 in federal grant funds.

	Exclusions
	Risk Assessments
	Procurement Requirements

	Project Management
	Public Announcements
	Project Start
	Reimbursements
	Grant Funds Advance
	Progress Reports
	Amendments
	Project End

	Grant Close-Out Process
	CPW Final Inspection
	Final Report
	Unused Grant Funds

	Contacts
	List of abbreviations
	AWM – Area Wildlife Manager
	BABA – Build America, Buy America
	CFR – Code of Federal Regulations
	CPW – Colorado Parks and Wildlife
	DNR – Department of Natural Resources
	EA – Environmental Assessment
	FHWA – Federal Highway Administration
	GOCO – Great Outdoors Colorado
	NEPA – National Environmental Policy Act
	NM – Non-Motorized
	OMB – Office of Management and Budget
	RTC – Regional Trail Coordinator
	RTP –FHWA’s Regional Trail Program
	STC – State Trails Committee
	UEI – Unique Entity Identifier

	Appendix A
	Detailed Listing of Eligible Budget Items
	 Match Only:
	Trail Crews:

	Awards for Volunteer Recognition:


	Montelores Coalition One-Pager - Government Focused
	Park Pavilion Rental Policy Memo



